NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 09" Annual General Meeting of the Members of the TEA
POST PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) will be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at
11:30 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company situated at D-0001, Elanza Crest, Nr.

Sigma House, Sindhu Bhavan Road Bodakdev, Thaltej, Ahmedabad 380059 to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS'
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1. Toreceive, constder and gdopt the AudﬁéQﬁnancual Statements tncludmg Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2024, Statement of Profit énd Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the

year ended on March 31, : 2024 and the Report of the Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report
thereon.
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:
2.T0 APPROVE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH MR, SAMIR DASHANI FOR
INCREASE IN HIS REMUNERATION: -

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as
an Ordlnary Resolutlon T :
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‘“RESOLVED THAT' pursuant to the prowsaons of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act’) and other applicable’ provisions,, if-any, read W|th Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date, approval of Shareholders be and
is hereby accorded to-the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into contract(s)/
arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) of employment in the office or place of profit in the company
with Mr. Samir Dashani. (Relatwe of- D;rector) in-which Mr. Darshan Anilbhai Dashani is
interested directly or thr&ugh their relatwe being arelated party within the meaning of Section
2(76) of the Act provided that' the said ct:mtr'c'-.tct(s)tr arrangement(s )/ transaction(s) so carried

out shall be at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company.
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POST
1 i3 Mr. Samir Dashani Remuneration | Not more than | Mr. Darshan
Rs. 5,00,000/- | Anilbhai Dashani
Relative of Director i.e. (Rupees Five
Brother of Mr. Darshan Lakhs  Only)
Anilbhai Dashani per month

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the. total value of contracts/arrangement/transactions of
employment in the office or place of profitin the company with-Mr; Samir Dashani (Relative
of Director) in any financial year should not exceed Rs:5,00,000/- per month.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to perform
and execute all such acts, deeds, matters and things including delegate such authority, as
may.be deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution and for the
matters connected herewnth or mmdentai hereto

3. CONVERSION OF COMPANY FROM PRIVATE COMPANY TO PUBLIC COMPANY:

To consider and if ‘thought fit, to- pass 'with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution(s) as a Special Resolution: '

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 13, 14 and any other applicable
provisions' of the Companies Act, 2013,.if any and Rule 33 of Companies (Incorporation)
_Rules, 2014 made there under, (including any modification and/ or amendments thereof) and
the consent of the shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to convert the
‘Company from ‘Private Limited’ to ‘Public Limited’ and consequently the

name of the company be:-changed from “TEA POST PRIVATE LIMITED" to “TEA POST
LIMITED" by deleting the word 'Private" before the word ‘Limited' in the name of the Company
wherever the same appears in the Memorandum of Association and Articles. of Association
of the Company. : &

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 if any and Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014
made there under, (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof) and the rules
framed there under, the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded for substituting
Clause | of the Memorandum of Association of the Company with the following clause:

“The Name of the Company is TEA POST LIMITED.”
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of
Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to execute all such documents,
instruments and writings as may be required and to take all such steps and actions and give
such directions as may in its absolute discretion deem necessary and to settle any question
that may arise in this regard.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Darshan Dashani (DIN: 00519928), Managing Director,
Mr. Raminder Singh'Rekhi (DiN 02073312), Mr. Puneet Tibrewala (DIN: 08015082),
Directors of the Company be and are’ hereby singly or jointly-authorized to do all such acts,
deeds and thlngs as may be necessary or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

4. ADOPTION OF NEW SETS OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY AS PER
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND PURSUANT TO CONVERSION TO PUBLIC LIMITED
COMPANY:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution(s) as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies/Act; 2013 ( the Act’) read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules,
2014, made there under, (mcludmg any. amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof), the
consent of Members be and is. hereby accorded to- adopt the new sets of Articles of
Association of the Company-in conformity. with the provisions of the Act relating to a public
limited company, thereby inserting the clause as per Section 2(71) of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the new sets of Articles of Association pursuant to the Act
pnmanly based on the Form of Table F of Schedule | under the’Act, be and is hereby approved
and adopted as new. sets of Artlgles of Assocsatlon in the place of existing Articles of
Association in conforrmty with the provisions of the Act relatlng to a public limited company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Darshan Dashani (DIN: 00519928), Managing Director,
Mr. Raminder Singh Rekhi. (DIN:-02073312), Mr. Puneet Tibrewala (DIN: 08015082),
Directors of the Company"'be and are hereby singly or jointly authorized to do all such acts,
deeds and things as may be necessary. or-expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

5. TO RECLASSIFY THE AUTHORiiéﬁ SHARE CAPITAL AND TO ALTER CAPITAL
CLAUSE OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61 and 64 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable provisions, if @ny,-including any- statutory modifications or any re-enactment
thereof for the time being:in force; Consent-of the Members be and is hereby accorded to

cancel the unissued 30,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10 each aggregating Rs.
3,00,00,000/-.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT authorized Equity Share Capital of the Company be and is
hereby increased by Rs.30,00,000 (Rupees thirty Lakhs only) by creation of 30,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- each :

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Memérandum of Association of the Company be altered
by deleting the existing Clause V and-inserting the following-_. - .

“V. The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 4,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four
Lakhs Only) divided into, 40,00,000 (Four Lakhs Rupees) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten) each.”

6.0 AMEND_ CLAUSE 0.2 OF “TEA POST PRIVATE LIMITED EMPLOYEE STOCK
OPTION PLAN 2023™: N 4 ~ Ny _
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT;‘purs_uanjr to the jprov'is:ir::ns of Section 62_(1)(b) read with Rule 12 of the
Companies' (Share Capﬁi'tal,_a'_nd Débenjgreé)M“Ié?uléf's“."é01-4"a“nd all other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies.Act,' 2613 anfj fulés made thereunder [including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], and in accordance with
the Memorandum a:nd Articles of Association of the Company (as amended from time to time)
and subject to such other -appr\ovals". perm[ssions,an”ci sanctions as may be necessary and
such conditions and modifications as rriay be imf)oserﬁ or prescribed while granting such
approvals, permissions and sanctions, which shall be accepted by the Board of Directors of
the Company, the approval and consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for effecting the following amendments in the existing Tea Post Private Limited
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Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 [hereinafter referred to as the “TPPL ESOP 2023” /
“Plan”].

“4. To amend and adopt the following Clause No. 4 i.e., Authority and Ceiling of TPPL
ESOP 2023 ) &Y
41 :

The shareholders of%"’tfne édmﬁany, c'uwrsuant."to"”'a Speciai° ‘Resolution dated 30"

W bt

September,2024 have authoriz_ed_ the Board to create, grant, issue & allot 21,357 Options to
the Eligible Employees under the Plan, in one or more tranches, with each such Option
conferring a rlght upon the Eligible Employees to apply for.one share of the Company, and
on such terms and tondltlons as may. be deterrmned by the Board in accordance with the

prov{_lsrons of this Plan and in-due cor_ng{rance with all other App!;cable Laws.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Darshan Anilbhai Dashani, Managing Director (DIN:
00519928), and Mr. Raminder Singh Rekh| (DIN: 02073312), Director of the Company, be
and are hereby singly or. jomtly authonzed to ﬂle,i srgn venfy and execute all such e-forms,
papers or documents as may be requwed and do all stich acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be necessary and mmdentai for gwrng effect to this Resolution.”

7. TO WITHDRAW AND DISSOLVE THE TEA POST PRIVATE LIMITED EMPLOYEE STOCK
OPTION PLAN 2023— Il

To consider and. if ghduéht fit, to pass iyith_fgr withg_\ut' modif’ica'tidn, the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) read with Rule 12 of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made-thereunder [including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], and in accordance with
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company (as amended from time to time)

and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary and
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such conditions and modifications as may be imposed or prescribed while granting such
approvals, permissions and sanctions, which shall be accepted by the Board of Directors of
the Company, the approval and consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to withdraw and dissolve the existing Tea Post Private Limited Employee Stock
Option Plan 2023 [hereinafter refefred to as the “TPPL ESOP 2023” / “Plan”] which was
originally approved in the Shareholder S Meetlng on 20t September, 2023, approving to allot
18,274 Shares to Mr; Darshan Dashani; Managing' Director of Company, being 2.5% [Two
and a half percent] of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the date of
passing the Resolution i.e 20" September, 2023, which has been not issued as on date.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr Qarshan Anilbhai ‘Dashani, Managlng Director (DIN:

00519928) and Mr. Rammder Smgh Rekhi/ (DIN 02073312), Dlrector of the Company, be
and are hereby singly or jointly authorized to file, sign, verify and execute all such e-forms,
papers or documents, as may be required and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as

may be necessary and incidental for giving effect to this Resolution.”

i

ol

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of,
FoMSJ PRIVATE LIMITED

Date: 05.09.2024 :
Place: Ahmedabad N % :

3 0 Darshan Anilbhai Dashani
A— DY) S Managlng Director

Registered Office: D-0001; Elanza Crest, DIN: 00519928

Nr. Sigma House, Sindhu Bhavan Road, ’

Bodakdeyv, Thaltej Ahmedabad, 380059
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NOTES:

1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act’)
relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting ((AGM’) is
annexed hereto. The Board of Directors have considered and decided to include the Item
No. 2 to 4 given above as Special Business in the forthcoming AGM.

2. Aperson can actas proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding Fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than 10 percent ofthe total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. In case a proxy is proposed to' be ‘appointed by a Member holding more than 10
percent of the total share capltal of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. The instrument appointing the proxy, in.order to be effective, must be deposited at the
Company's Registered  Office, /duly completed and signed, not less than FORTY-EIGHT
HOURS before the commencement. of the AGM. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited
companies, societies, etc., must be supported by appropriate resolutions/ authority, as
applicable.

4. The Notice is being sent. to the Members, whose names appear in the Register of

~ Members/List of Beneficial Owners as\on 05/09/2024 and voting rights shall be reckoned

on the paid up value of the shares reg|stered in the name of the Members as on the said
date. > i\

5. Members/proxies should bring the Attendance Slip duly filled in for attending the meeting.
The form of attendance slip.and proxy form are attached at the end of the Annual Report.

6. The Register of Dlrectors and Key Manager:al Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Compames Act, 2013 Wlll be avallable for inspection by the
members at the AGM._ ik N A ~

7. The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which directors are tnterested maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the
members at the AGM._

8. Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 ‘extends nomination facility to individual
shareholders of the Company. Therefore, shareholders willing to avail this facility may make
nomination in Form SH-13 as provided in the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014.
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Members desirous of seeking any information as regards the accounts are requested to
write to the Director at least 7 days prior to the Annual General Meeting, so as to enable the

9.
Company to keep the information ready
10. The route map showmg dlrectlons to reaqh the venue of the AGM is annexed and forms

part of the Notlce §

ROUTE MAP TO VENUE
“:’_7 Water Solutcrs 0 Q .. "

@ &g:&{mm:m_

[

Fryvebro Water
Seraces LLP
P o Cliantha Research
Limited (Sigma Office) Shilign
L e
il s

hirn LI

Tea Post Pt
Waives Creat
—y
BioC
i | il

Times squore -.»aly'd ’a w2

Aty Software
s i Qtimu Q Hp ot
Harmada

Reubenerie Dedign

&
A
_§ =
_g Pt Lid - Top Intesior
2 o D persq
£ { N
S A
3 | B erhrntogie b b ire
= iy 5wk
£
@ Pl @
- il
i g y o 3
-3
i ol » e
> e it
» 1\
— sy >
%

Tea Post Pvt Ltd.
D-001 Elanza Crest, Sindhu Bhavan Road, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad — 3800059, Gujarat, India Phone: 079 - 4800 2466
GST No: 28AAFCT5415L1Z8 | info@teapost.in | www.teapost.in

CIN U15491G12015PTC085010



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:

ITEM NO. 2: TO APPROVE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH MR. SAMIR DASHANI
FOR INCREASE IN HIS REMUNERATION:

Y
The Company proposed to enter mta transactlon,(s) W|th Mr, Samir Dashani (Relative of Director),
to provide the remunerahon not exceedmg Rs 5 00, 000)‘- per month for his employment in the
office or place of profitin the: company

The Members are apprised that pursuant to the Section 188(1)(f) of the Companies Act 2013 and
applicable Rules framed there under provide that any Related Party Transaction will require prior
approval of shareholders through ordlnary resoiutlon if the monthiy remuneratlon exceed Rs.
250,000k pertoath i~ XN/ /| TAN\5/ 00 5N |

Accordingly; transaction(s) entered into with Mr, Samir Dashani (Relative of Director) comes within
the meaning of Related Party transaction(s) in terms of provisions of the Act.

Hence; approval of the shareholders is being sought for the said Related Party Transaction(s)
proposed to be entered into by your Company with Mr. Samtr Dashani (Relatwe of Director).

Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companles “‘(Meetlngs of Board ’and its Powers) Ru!es 2014, as amended
till date, particulars of the transactlon(s) w:th Mr. Samir Dashani (Relative of Director) is as follows:

“Name of the Related Party — : | an

Nature of Relatiohship-' /1 | “"%Reiatwe of Dlrector i.e. . Brotherof Mr.
PN [T Darshan Anilbhai Dashani

3. Name of the Director or KIVIP‘ who is Mr. Darshan Anilbhai Dashani

related

4, Nature, Duration of the contract and | Mr. Samir Dashani is holding a position of
particulars of the- contract A or | Vice President of Company and approval of
arrangement “/| the members of the Company is sought for

‘payment of remuneration to Mr. Samir
Dashani, during his employment with the
Company, as stated in the resolution.
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5. Material terms, monetary value and | Monetary Value: Rs. 5,00,000/- per month
particulars of the contract or | by way of remuneration. As per the terms of
arrangement the respective contracts or arrangements
entered into or to be entered into from time
to time in the ordinary course of business
; and on an arms' length basis.

6. Any advance paid or Received, the | NIL

contract or arrangement; ifany = %
7. The manner. of ‘determining~the | Inthe ordinary course of business and on an
pricing and other commercial terms, | arms' length basis.

both.included as part of contract and
not considered as part of the contract
8. Whether all factors relevant to the | NIL
contract have been considered, if not
the details of factors not considered |V
|-with the rationale for no,t;:onsudermge
those factors;

9. | Any other information relevant or | None
important for the members to take a
| decision on the proposed resolution

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the resolution as-an Ordinary Resolution.

Except Mr. Darshan Dashani none of the Directors or Key Managérial Personnel of the Company
and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Ordinary Resolution
except to the extent of their sha"reholding in'the Company.

ITEM NO. 3 CONVERSION OF COMPANY FROM PRIVATE COMPANY TO PUBLIC
COMPANY: ) o

The Company was originaliyinéorpbra‘ted on 05" November, 2015 as a private limited company
under Companies Act, 1956 with the Name “TEA POST Private Limited”. The Board of Directors
of the Company has passed the resolution in their Board Meeting held on Thursday, 05"
September, 2024 for Conversion of the Private Limited into Public Limited to expand its business
activities and tap public markets for funding requnrements Accordingly, it is required to convert
itself in to a public company.

The conversion of the Company to public limited company will result in amending the name clause
of the Memorandum of the Company since the name of the Company will change from “TEA
POST PRIVATE LIMITED" to “TEA POST LIMITED".
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In terms of Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the members by way of special
resolution is required for amendment of the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

Moreover conversion into a Public Company shall not affect any debts, liabilities, obligations or
contracts incurred or entered into; by or.on behalf of the company before conversion and such
debts, liabilities, obligations and contracts may be enforced in'the manner as if such conversion
had not been done. &Y/ - )
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As per the provisions of thé Companles Act, 201 3. the consent of the members by way of Special
Resolution is required for conversion of the Company from Private Limited to Public Limited i.e.
from “Tea Post Private Limited" to “Tea Post -Limite‘d",
The Directors recommend the passmg of Resolutlon for Member’s approval as a Special
Resolution{ \ 2 N A=A\ | ) | N 7L

4 {' -

None of its Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof is interested, financially or
otherwise in the aforesaid resolution except their shareholding in the Company.

ITEM NO. 4: ADOPTION OF NEW SETS OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY
AS PER THE COMPAN]ES ACT, 2013 AND. PURSUANT TO CONVERSION TO PUBLIC
LIMITED COMPANY:

In view of the conversion from privete limited company to public limited company, it is proposed
to adopt new sets of Articles of Association, in place of the existing Articles of Association of the
Company in conformity with the-provisions of the Act relating to a public limited company.

Pursuant to provisions ' of. Section-14 of Compames Act, 2013, amendment of Articles of
Association requires approval.of Members! by way of Special Resolutton Hence Special resolution
forming part of the notice is approved for your: approval

A copy of existing as well as new.sets of Articles of Association of the Company would be available
for inspection at the registered office of the Company during working hours on any working day.

The proposed Resolution is in the interest of the Com"pany and the Directors recommend the
passing of Resolution for Member’s approval as a Special Resolution.
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None of its Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof are interested, financially
or otherwise in the aforesaid resolution except their shareholding in the Company.

ITEMNO. 05: TO RECL.ASSIFY THE AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL AND TO ALTER
CAPITAL CLAUSE OF MEMO_RAND!.IM OF ASSOC!ATION OF THE. COMPANY

Keepmg in view future plans of . ralsmg funds by lssue of Equity Shares board of directors has
decided to increase its equity share capital. Company is having surplus preference share capital
which seems to be unutilized in the coming years.

Pursuant to Section 13.-and 61 of the Companies Act, 2013 alteration in Memorandum of
Association requires approval of sharehdjde;s, hence the resolutlon is proposed for the approval
of members ~ AV /X T e __,, |55 4 _

4&"\

The Directors recommend the Reselunon ‘setout.in the Notice for the approval of the Members.

None of the Directors, Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel of the company and their relatives
seems to be concerned and interested in the_proposed resolution.

iy

ITEM NG 06 T0 AMEND CLAUSE 41 OF ‘STEA POST PRIVATE LIMITED EMPLOYEE
STOCK OPTION PLAN 2023” N\ Pl o= o’

..... s, P SIS0

The Company wants to amend the Clause 4. 1 of “Tea Post Private Limited Employee Stock
Option Plan 2023" as follows: :

Detail of Variation, " |/ The'ESOP, Pool of the Share has been/Amend from
hé " /1:36,548 Share t0 21,357 Shares.
2. | Rationale of the Variation. | The Company decreased the existing shares pool of
~ U 'the ESOP to align and streamline the capital structure
of the Company.

3. Details of employees who | As per Clause 3.1.13 of “Tea Post Private Limited
are beneficiaries of such | Employee Stock Option Plan 2023"
variation

The Board of Director's in their meeting held on 05" September, 2024 has approved the
amendment in the Tea Post Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 of the Company
as set out in item no. 06 of the notice, subject to the approval of members of the Company.
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The Board of Directors recommend the passing of the Resolution of the accompanying Notice
for the approval of the Members of the Company as Special Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Special Resolution except to the extent
of their shareholding in the Company.

Ty | W
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ITEM NO. 07: TO WITHDRAW AND DISSOLVE THE TEA POST PRIVATE LIMITED
EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 2023 I

The Board of Director’s in their meeting held on 215 August, 2023 and its shareholders meeting
held on 20t September, 2023 approved ‘Tea Post Private Limited Employee Stock Option
Plan 2023 —1I also called as ‘TPPL ESOP 2023 ~1l’or. ‘Plan - II’

However, as the. company has not issued any share tlll date under the Plan - 1l'and to align and
streamline the capital structure of the Company, the Company wishes to dissolve the existing
TEA POST PRIVATE LIMITED EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 2023 — Il

Hence, The Board of Directors recommend the passing of the Resolution of the accompanying
Notice for the approval of the Members of the Company as Special Resolution,

None of the Directors or Key Manager:al Personnel except Mr. Darshan Dashanl Managmg
Director, of the Company-and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
in the Special Resolution except to the extent of their shareholdmg in the Company.

Forand on behalf of Board of Directors of,
1 _ ; For, TEAPOST PRIVATE LIMITED

Date: 05.09.2024 : . =_' ] f_f* LAY :
Place: Ahmedabad ' '

Darshan Anilbhai Dashani
Managing Director
DIN: 00519928
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Registered Office: D-0001, Elanza Crest,
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN 'U15491GJ2015PTCO85010

Name of the Company. | Tea Post Private Limited ;

Registered Office - D-0001, Elanza Crest, Nr. Sigma House Sindhu Bhavan Road,
= Bodakdev, Thaltej Ahmedabad 380059

Name of the Member(s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id: )
DPID: RS

I/ We, being the member (s')' of shares of the above named company, hereby
appoint

1..Name:
Address:
Esmailld: -
Signature: : , or-failing him

2. Name:
Address: )
E-mail Id; : ! i i AL,
Signature: - orfailing him-. | =

3. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

As my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/ our behalf at the 09" Annual
General Meeting of members of the Company, to be held on Monday, 30" September, 2024 at
11:30 A.M. at Registered Office situated at D-0001, Elanza Crest, Nr. Sigma House, Sindhu
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Bhavan Road, Bodakdev, Thaltej Ahmedabad 380059 and at any adjournment thereof in respect
of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Ordinary Business:

1.

Special Business:

2

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements including Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2024, Statement of Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for
the year ended on March 31,2024 and the Report of the Directors’ Report and Auditors’
Report thereon. & :

To approve related party transactiohs with Mr. Samir Dashani for increase in his
remuneration.

3. Conversion of Company from anate Company to Public Company
4. -Adoption of new set of Articles of Association of the Company as per the Companies Act,
2013 and pursuant to conversmn to Public Limited Company.
5. To reclassify the authorized Share Capital'and to alter capital clause of the Memorandum
of Association of the- Company.
6. To amend Clause 4.1 of “Tea Post Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2023".
7. -To thhdraw and dissolve the “Tea Post Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan
2023 II” : :
Signed this day of 2024
Affix
Signature of Shareholder .- = /] Revenue
' ' Stamp
4 '\":'»«_ . . : o ! £ 3

Signature of Proxy holder(s) ™

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement
of the Meeting.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF

THE MEETING HALL

| hereby record my presence at the 09" Annua!' General Meeting of the Company convened on
Monday, 30t September, 2024 at 11;30 A:M. at the Registered office of the Company situated at
D-0001, Elanza Crest, Nr. Sigma House, Sindhu Bhavan Road, Bodakdev, Thaltej Ahmedabad

380059.

Registered Folio No

No. of Shares

Name and CompleteMAddresé.
Shareholder

i

of the Equity. |

Signature

Representative: -

Name of the Proxy Holder/ Authorized '

e

Signature

NOTE: Equity shareholders attending the meeting in Person of by Proxy or through Authorized
Representative are requested to complete and bring the Attendance Slip with them and hand it
over at the entrance of the Meeting Venue.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
Tea Post Private Limited,

The Board of Directors is plcased lc pre@ent the Conmpany’s 09"’ Annual Report of the Company
covering the opuatmg and !;mdm.ml, ];crfonnancc 10gc,tl]cr with the Audited Financiul
Staiementis and Audnom repgn thercon f'or lhe ﬁmmcml year ended on March 31, 2024,

CORPORATE OVER'\'{LE_W

The world has beun mesmerized b}' this. beauuiu] beuerabe called. Cildl With the help of a cup
of Chai, nuluons of‘ peoplu fﬂevaiu thurmoo%s and, f'cef rcfreshed India is Lhe courtry.of tea
].O‘t’t.’:rb And thcy 41] love Chal from lhe bottom oftheu hems
. e § L

The Idca of'I't:a Post had _bcc'_n_ br::wi'ng in the heart of Mr. Darshan Dashani-for a long time
Tea Post was envisioned with the dream 6f reaching out to suchtea lovers and offering them a
greal expérience of having Chzn Mr. Darshan Dashani launched the first Tea Post in Rajkat
uty to'cater to the € h‘ualovcr wuhm evf:ryont}. It was h;a comprchenswn aboul the demand and
vision which mok Tea P,OSI Erom one. outlur 10 40 outlels within:just 3 years. And then goingon
ahyper | drw;., FEa Poeb,opcned RIES 100 outle{ in201 W'Slamng frop humble beginning, today
Tea Post has become one of the fasmst»growmg Tea Cafe chains in India - present in 50 ecities
across 4 states. At our Tea Posi, you get the'bestofeverything - be it Chai, Food, or Experience.

Good expuicncé & 1,00(1 immorit,s — lhis is how pecplc remember our Tea Post. Tt‘,‘l l’ast i\ a
200+ oullcts sprcad acroq-;jl}-b qltws, we! rqp(oud of crcatmg a spm.e ihat gm::. pLOple peace
of mind. ’lc.a Posl 15 km}wn as the%n,oaff ha;;pemng 'haugout place, and it is quite popular

amongst pcoplc of all aggs V\z are the' fasrcst:growme tea caté chain becauge of those millions
of tea lovers in India 1o \,\hom we serve 2.5 million eups ol happiness every month,

e
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS

The Company's financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2024 is summarised
below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

4232 4.397.07
Other Income _ . 4491 31.93
Total Income A LY e o 4 N 5,467.01 4,428.‘)9_—
Profit/loss before Depracxanon, Finance | 342.71 246.90
Costs, Exceptional items and Tux Exp@nse i s T
Tessi Tl Dcpr.{;_clanmﬂf '~-jci*\’momzau N 1292191 186.28
Impaitoient, f S e
Profi{ "/!oss befare lFmance ,Coals. 50.52 60.62
E\cepnona! Items and Tax Expense :
Less; Finance Costs 0 ¢ , 37.64 B 6.64
Profit /loss before Exceptigmal itenis and 12.88 §3.98
Tax Expense . it L e O\ \
‘Add/(Less): Exceptiona) ltcms 0 NN S 0 0
Ptoﬁt!&oss}befor&’laxhxpenﬁe p i,.f?q\ g [N ST12:8 53,98
V2SS Tl Expenstll pSSSsb AT @ 10 e/
f'} rrentJ'I’ax — \'-:,1"‘;-«-, : Q' -.\ o : { 0
(B) Deferred Tax e 1Y, 5.97 3.85
(c) Prior year's tax adjustments - 0 0.27
Proﬂtf(Loss).fo'r-thé‘xear‘ P tdal 6.91 47.86
TRAI\.S)FER TO RESER)!ES i k a’ g AN
7~ m- s AR 6 O | t—mww 1 Lo 8 g e -

The Board of Direcwm of your company has declded notto transfer any amount to the Reserves

i

for the year under re‘.’lcw

DIVIDEND A

G0

The Board of Directors of your company, afier considering holistically the relevant
circumstances and keeping in view the company's dividend distribution policy, has decided 11
would be prudent, not 1o recommend any Dividend for the year ended on 31% March, 2024 and
the entire surplus be ploughed back to the business to meet the needs for additional finance for

capitil expenditure.

Tea Post Pyt Ltd.
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STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS

During the year under review, company made total income of Rs. 5,467.61/- (in Lakhs) as
against Rs. 4,428.99/- (in Lakhs) in the previous year. The company has made Profit before
Depreciation, Finance Cost, Exceptional Item and Tax Expenses of Rs. 342.71/- (in Lakhs) as
against Profit before Depreciation, Finance Cost, Exceptional Item and Tax Expenses of Rs,
246.90/- (in Lakhs) in the previous yvear in the financial statement.

The Net Profit of your company is Rs. 6.91/- (in Lakhs) as against Profit of Rs. 47.86/- (in
Lakhs) in the previous ye:ar in:the lipancial staiement.

a

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Authorised Share Cap:tal

During the under review, there-was no change in the Authorised Share: Capital of the company
TherAuthorized (Share. Capﬂa] of your Lompany as on March 31, 2024 stood at Rs.
4,00,00, 000/~ {Rupcr_:, Four Crore Only): comprising of Rs: 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees Que Crore
OnTy) divided mto 10 00 000 (Tcn Lakh) cqmry sharés of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten (‘Jnle Lach and Rs. 3 00 00 OUOI— (Rupees Thres Crore Only) divided inta 30,00,000
(Thirty Lakh) prclerencc shares of the f facevalue of RS, 10/~ (Rupees Ten Only) each.

Paid Up Share Capital:

During the year under review, _YOur;compafzy has not-allotted any shares. The Paid Up Share
Capital as on March31, 2024-5100d_at Rs. 73;09,790/ (Rupees Seveiity Three Lakh Nine
Thousand" Seven Hundred and Ninety Only) .di\_-ided into 7.30,979 (Seven Lakh Thirty
Thousand Nine Hundred andSe’ven;y Ning}equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/~ (Rupeces
Ten Only) each. .

However, after the year ended March 31; 202-1 your company | has allotted 34,667 equity shares
on right basis on July:03} "0"4 Funhe; your company hs also allolted 16,850 equity shares,

;700 equity shares and 8,900 equily shares on pfcfercmlai basis on Augu:.t 09, 2024, August
?4 2024 and Seplember 04, 2024 rcap::ctwciy

r—'--.‘)l' -
,_/K' s
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CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING
THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY, HAVING
OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR AND l"lLL THE DATE OF
THE REPORT

There have been no matérial changes and commitments, whichaffect the financial position of
the company which have occurred betweenthé-end of the financial year to'whichi the financial
statements relatedand (he date ot this Report,

ALTERATION OF MEI\'IORANDU::\'I OF ASSOCIATION

I)unm lhc yedar under rwm\w, there zs no alterauon mude in Memorandum of Assoeiation
(MO '\) ofthe Company

ALTERATION OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year under review, there is no alteration made 1T Article of Association (AOA) of
the Company. However; after the year ended March 31, 2024 your company has altered AOA
by amgending the Clause13(i)'vide Special Resolution passed al the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting of the mcu_ibers___(}”f‘ftﬁé' Company held on Tune.01, 2024,

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION
AND PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant to the-Section 124 applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Investor Education and Pmlu.cnon Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund)
Rules, 2016 (“TEPF Rules™), all the unpdid or ‘unclaimed dividends are required 1o be
transferred to the [EPF established by the Central Government, upon completion of seven (7)
years.

Further, according to the Investor Education & Protection Fund ("IEPF") Rules, the shares in
respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed by the Shareholders for seven (7)
consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the demat acceunt created by the [EPF
Authority.

T

)

Tea Post Pvt Ltd. e~ \
D-001 Elanza Crest, Sincdhu Bhavan Road, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad — 3800059, Gujarat, India Phone: 079 - 4800 2466,
GST No: 24AAFCTS415L178 | info@teapost.in | www.teapost.in

CiN : U15491GJ2015PTCO85010



v
tca

POST

During the year under review, the Company does not have any unpaid or unclaimed dividend
or shares relating thereto which is required to be transferred to the IEPF as on the date of this
Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Appointment/ Re-Appointment;

During the year under.review, the Lompany has-changed the designation of Mr. Puncet
Tibrewala (DIN: 08015082) from an 1ndepg,ndem Director 16 Nominee Director with effect
from September 20, 2023

Cessation:
During the year under review, there is no cessation of director from the Board
Independent Dircetors;

The provisions, of Section 149(4) pertaining to the appointment of Independent Directors do
not @pply to our Company. .

[{ey.}\lanagcr_ial Pé':"'spll:}_cl:"

4

The- Key Managerial Persmme (KMPG) of the Company dunna the financial ‘year ending
March 31, 2024 are;

o Mr. Darshan Anilbhai Dashani (Managing Director)
DECLARATIONS OF INDEPENDE]\T DIRECTORS

The provision of Seur'on 149(7). of the Compames Act, ’701'5 pertammg to the declaration by
independent Directors do not: apply to-our.Company:

ay
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COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND THEIR MEETINGS

The Board of Directors provide Ieadersh:p aml guidance to the Management and directs and
supervises the performance of_:hc Cio panm 1_h§ercby enhancing stakeholder value.
alr | 7 T

1. | Mr. Darshan Anilbhar Dashar ! | Managing Director
2t ¥ . | Director
3. | Mr, Purieet T lal /|| jzNou %',"‘;AEQ@&TJ Nﬁn&u,gawrecmr
; w O V2R T AT T T R |
P2 ) B e SR AN e
%{ : 1 — AN R

ﬁ’b '_‘got’ D}reﬁars duly met Qﬁgxrng- af regular mter?als citmng the mentioned financial
and. pf whxcﬁ@gcy.ugs..?rqper nonccs W ren and the proceedings were
i ook~fﬁaimam¢d o the purpose. The intervening

Y hﬁ.ﬂié’?eneﬂ @(gsc ;d under me Compa:m:s Ac1

,-r" (53 é{i ‘.»_( -

Punaet TIbreWala

21/082023 = s “Ye R e A o e It
07[1212023% ;I:f:l C‘_‘-‘__‘: B 3 A= 7 7 a.. _-. ) Yes

RN e L0 et T8 IR
Total numbers of \"?l?/i “05?04;“\? i T 08044 ) ' 04/04
meetings attended o\ 2]

During the year under review, one Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held on June 08,
2023.

VY
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of provisions of Section l?«!(.‘sj uf the Board of Dircctors, 1o the best of their
knowledge and abmty, conilnn {hut s &

s" A i
“. ..»7" 7 o

follo_wed:along, v-1tl]._pr0p-_r_e>.pians!1on relalmg to material depdrim-_:,‘

b) The directors had selected such acconnting policies and applied them consistently and

. ~mede judgments/and estimates that'are reasonable and prudent 50 as to-give u true and

fair view of the state of afTairs of the company at the cnd ofthe financial year and of
the pr of‘t of the company for. thaLpenod

¢y The dircétom had fakex propg.r and sufﬁcicnt care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting.récords in acgordance with the provisions of this Act for sateguarding the
assets of the company and forpreventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities,

d) The directors had'prepared the-annual accounis ona goiﬁg_ goneern basis; and

| ‘&) Thedirectors hiad devised proper systéms to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all appiicable laws afid-that such syStems were adequate and operating c(Tectively.

COMPANY'’S l’OLIC\ ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND
RE‘\TU\FRATIO\

The provisions of Section 178(1) u:latmg lo comtmmon of Nommination and Remuneration
Committee are not applxuabic to the Company and hence the & Company has not devised any
policy relating to appointment af Ditectors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matiers as
provided under Section 178(3) of the Companmies Act, 2013.

DETAILS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE
TO THE FINANCIAL CONTROL

/;\",)
J____/
Tea Post Pvt Ltd.
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The Company has in place an adequate internal financial control system, which is
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business. The internal
financial control system of the Company is monitored and evaluated, periodically reviewed,
discussed and corrective actions thereon are iaken and reported,

This ensures orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company's policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention of errors, accuracy and compleleness
of the accounting records and the timely preparation; of reliable financial information. The
internal financial controls™ with reference to the financial statements were adequate and
operating effectively. i

DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTING BY AUDITOR

During the year under reviewy there were né frauds reported by the auditors-to the Board under
saction l43(l7) ofthe Compdmc Act, _.013

DISCLOSURES RELATI\G TO SUBSiDIARITS ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary; Joint Venture or Associate Company in terms of
Compatiies Act, 2013,

Howgver, the Compiny has mc.urpomed a Branch OI“ice during the year 2022 1y Dubai bul no
business has been started vet.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has pot accepted any deposits within the meaning
of Section 73 of the ('rlmp.mle: Aet, 2013 und ;}u. Corupaml_h (Acccptam.r: ol Deposits) Rules,
2014, -

PARTICULARS OF LOAN‘S, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186

The Company has not made any investment, given any loan and guarantee and provided
security under Scction 186 of the Comparnies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

LOANS FROM DIRECTOR/RELATIVE OF DIRECTOR

Tea Post Pvt Ltd.
D-001 Elanza Crest, Sindhu Bhavan Road, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad — 38G0059, Gujarat, india Phone: 079 - 4800 2466
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The balances of monies accepted by the Company from Directors/ relatives of Directors at the
beginning of the year were NIL and at the ¢lose of year was also Ks. NIL.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All Related Party 'I'ransai:t_ioxis_ thatwere cntered during the financial year ended on 31% March,
2024 were on an arm’s length basis and in the ardinary course of business and is in compliance
with the applicable: provisions of the Act. Thege were no Related Panty Transactions made by
the Company durmz, 1he ycar LhaJ. required. shar'.:lmldcrs apprm'al

—t o r e

&
i /sf'

The Company has entered 1 mto reialed party’ tmnsactlons W hich fall under the scope of Section
188(1) of the Act. ALLordmgly thc disclnsuru of reldted party transactions as required under
Section 134(3)(h) of the'Act inFom "-\OC are given byAnnexure [ of this Director's Report
for financial year 31% March, 2024,

CORPORATE SOC[AL RESPO"Q IBILITY

Asthe Company ﬁocas not. Fall undcr tht, mandazory bracke: of Corporate Social Respansibility
as requ:rul under: Secuon 135 of'the Companies Act, 2013, hence Company lias nat taken any

mluatwc on Corporate !muai Re spunsibility.
I)ISCLOSURE OF COMP(_)SITIQN OF AUDIT COMMITTE E

The pmvmun,& of’ Su,non 177 of the Cornp&m.s Act 20 13 read:with Rule 6, 0f the Companies
(Meetings ofthe Board and 15, Pov.crs) Rules 2014:is'not applicabletothe Company.

VIGIL MECHANI S 1\‘[

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of the' Board cmd 115 Pt)wen) Rulva 2014 is not applicable to the
Company. -

>

V=
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CONSERVATION OF ~ENERGY. "'fEc%ﬁbLocv ABSORPTION,
FOREIGN EXCHAN” EE&R}\- NG'S AND OUTGO

The details orfc "_ Q % sohn 3’9 c‘rrptmn{ fom@]_cgg&“hange earmngs and
outgo are as'fo! 3 W N >
o N T

1% Comp;my‘s ‘operation does
‘not. -consume  significant
amgunl of energy

| Not %ppl?cabic. i View of
;%mmis in clmez(x«)

 Not Applicable, in view of
: nﬁx g@m ¢lause (i)

o3 %.‘ '

(@) the deta ;qucqugy 1mpﬁﬁ&§_, ,,
(b) the year oilmpeqt}wu -~ 2@ ]

(¢) whether the technology. C rbﬁ,_/ 1, &
(d) if not fully absorbed, ibsorption has

not taken place, and the reasons thereof and _
(iv) |the expenditure incurred on Research and  NIL
Development

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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2023-24 (202223
(i) | Foreign exchange earnings  NIL INIL A
(1) | CIF Value of imports NIL {51.43
(iii) | Expenditure in foreign currency 14.64 | 9.68

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND ITS IMPLEMENTION

The Company is Privale Limited Company hence it is not covered under the purview for
constituting Risk Management Commitfee under the provision of Listing Agreement. The
Company has developed: and. unplcmcnted&msk Management Pnhcv tor identification of
element of mk w‘mch nay- lhrcaten the: exlslcnte WFthe Company and-also (lewiopud tool o

overcoms quch elsmcnts : " 5_: i P
[’crio.dic"assgzs'smems,\to identify the risk dreas are-carried out‘and management is briefed on
the risks in advarice to enable the company to contral risk through a properly defined plan, The
l'lbk.S are class:fted as financial risks, operational risks and market risks. The risks are taken into
account while pr:.panng the annual business* ‘plan.for Lhu year, The Board'is also periodically
mfonnw of the bux:ness ngﬁs dnd ﬂxe«actmhs ta!\en to manage them, The Company has
formnlazcd & pOlIC?f for Rlbk managcment \.\ﬂh the [ollnwmg objectives;
« (Provide anoverview of'the prmmples of risk management;
a E.‘{pidln approdch-adopted by the Company forrisk management;
s Definle the organizational 's!ruuure for effective risk management;
e _Devr..!op a4risk" culmre that, cmourages all employees to 1denm} risks and aasouated
Dppurmnmes ﬂnd to respond m thc;n}wnh cﬂ'ectwc acuons

and ﬁn*ancml aba(ﬂ&

SIGNIFICANT = & .~ MATERIAL- ORDERS  PASSED BY THE

REGUL ATORS OR COUR"I S OR TRIBUNAL&,

There are no significant mdltrldl orders pmcd by the chulators or Courts or Tribunal, which
would impact the going concern status of the Companv and its future operation.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditor:

Tea Post Pvt Ltd.
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In the 07™ Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 30h September, 2022 M/s Mukesh M Shah
& Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN. 106625W) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years until the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting of the Company i the year 2027. The Company has received letter
from M/s Mukesh M Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants, to the effect that their appointments,
if made would be within the prescribed limits of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
that they are not disqualified for such appointment within the meaning of Section 141 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

The Auditors’ Report for the financialiyedr ended on -March 31, 2024 have been provided in
“Financial Statements” founmg part/ of thsfmmua] Report, '

A 4 et

remark or dtqclalmcr T]]L bservations |1mde in the Audlmr Ru..pml arg solf- mpidudlor) Lmd
therefore donoticall forany further comments.,

SECRETAR_IA L STANDARDS

During |the year undn.r review, the- Company ha&. compln.d with the-applicable Secretarial
Standards issued:by The Insumte of Company Secretaries of India (ICST). The Company has
devised proper sy.st_ems to ensure compliance with its provisions and is in compliance with the
same. -

ANNUALRETURN. . o

b

In hiecordance WIt11 Su.tiom 134(3}(&1) gSL 9”(i) or‘rh:, Campamcs *\ct, 2013 read with Rule
12(1) of the Companics (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, The annual return in
Form No.MGT-7A for the financial year2023-24 will be zwa.le.bie on the webhsite of the
Company {(httpsy//www.leapost.in). The due date for filing annual return for the financial year
2022-23 is within a period of sixiy days from the date of annual general mecting. Accordingly,
the Company shall file Ihc same wnh the Mmlblry of Cm])orareA[Tdtrs within preseribed time

and a copy of the sami ahaii be made “dvailable’ onthe websité of the Company i.e
(hutps:/www.teapost.in) as is required-in terms of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 30!3,

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT,
2013

Your Company provides equal opportunitics and is committed to creating a healthy working
environment that enables our minds to work with equality and without fear of discrinunation.

Tea Post Pyt Ltd.
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prejudice, gender bias or any form of harassmen: at workpiace. Your Company has in place a
Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH) policy in accordance with the requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,

During the year under review, there were no cases filed under the sexual harassment of women
at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressed) Act, 2013.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Directors are pleased 10 report ‘that 1h_é relations between the employees und the
management continued toremain cordial -:il,lri_pélhé year under review...

o | !
A iy

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The provisions of Rule 5(2) & (3) of flie Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of
Manageridl Personngl) R:ules, 2014 are not: apphcabl».. to -the Company, 25 none of the
Emplovces of the Company has received temuneration aboye the limits spacified in the Rule
5(2) & (3)af the: Compameﬁ lAppmntmcm & Rcmunemllon of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
70 14 dun ng the financial year 70”3 24, 5

MAT T\TEN ANCE OF COST RECORDS

‘Fhk.'pré'visiahs rtl".ni’n'g 10 ma{imcnance u‘f Ct)"ii records"as specif‘ icd by the Central Gmxmmuu

......

C c}mpany and a-:c,ordmgly suuh accnun{s 'Lnd T€C0fdb are not reqmrcd to e maintdined.

. o

INSOLYV .E-NCY A ND BAN KRUPTCY CODE

There is no application made ur any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptey
Code, 2016 (31'0f 2016) during thelyéar, |, =

The details of difference between amount of the valuation' done at the time of one time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan fromi the Banks or Financial Instiutions
along with the reasons thereof (s not applicable 1o the Company.

P
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The Dxrecfors \wsh to con\eav th%u‘ ﬁppremauon 10 a}] ol‘ the C‘ompanv s emplm ges for their
enormous  personalefforts as well as their collective contriburion o the Company's
performance.- The Directors would alsoflike to thank the employee unjons, shareholders.
customers, dealers, suppliers, bankers, Goverment and all otlier business associdates for their

\.cmm\mus suppurmo the Company aud ﬂxeu‘ Lonﬁdence i ils management
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ANNEXURE I

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuasnt to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
8(2) of the Campanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts or arrangements enfered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of'the Companies Act, 2013
including certain anm’s length transactions uud T fourth proviso thereto:

i
¥ 3

1. Dr.mls of contr aets or armngumcn ts or transactlons not at arm’s lmgth basis:

- ! ey
i Sy
L e . ¥

Tea Post Private Lmuted. (lhc C omp.sny) hds not cmcmd inforany contract arrangement/
transaction with its reldted parties; which is not it ordinary course of business or atarm’s length
during: the financial year 2023-24. The Compdny has laid down pdlicics. and processes/
prOcc”('I'ures do as (o ensure compliance to the subject'section in the Companies Act, 2013 (Act)
and lhe mrreqpondmg T{ules Jnr addttwn thp pmce% go:.; throuLh internal and external

-+ ?

_3@) Naine(g)_-of th'z -relalf;g:l'pa'ﬁy and-nénifré’ of'rel{ationship': Not Applicable

b) Natire'of contrigts/ arrangements/ transactions: Not Applicable

¢) Duration of the contracis/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions inciuding the valoe, i
any: Not Appl\cabl“

e) Justification for ﬂntsrmg mto such contrdcts Or arrangem enits: or transactions: Not
Applicable.— '\ 2 Al

f) Date(s)of .1pprm alby the Board Not Apphcao‘

) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

l) Date on which thespecial resolution was passed in general meeting as required under
first proviso to Section 188; Not Applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

{Rs. in Lakhs)
= f'_Amoun
't paid

T

| Salient
; =-wrn,_1$'-- of

Dat
approval
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Limited

Enterprise
significanily
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influenced
by Director |
4, Acclaim Purchase 01/04/2023- | 1.13
Enterprise 31/03/2024
LLP

08/05/2023

Enterprise
significantly
fluenced

by Direttor 42> 2
5. . Raminder | Commission | 01/04/2023- | 3.55 .~} 08/0522023 | NA

)
%
1
g

[ SIgIREKHL b 1817032004 |- ) 81
ke M S 80 12 By NN i SR Laiie
(o) A=HUF i t’é ek bl -
=~ AL G W ) 2Rt

Relative of |
| Director - 1\
6. Samir . Remuneration | 01/04/2023- 139.00 08/05/2023+ | NA
7\ | Dashani ||'31/03/2024 “

= x ! i g = »g_-'_ﬂ..,'.

i

] L c C o —
Relalive! |of {4 AT
Director e | ot I'{ |

HBrother—of | [
My, Darshan =

' | Dashani 2 _

T i Jayyardhian, bRemureration | Q1/0412023| 1.087C— 1 08/05/2023

NA

s 0 o . s R : 3
07 |\ Dashami==g /=8 'g.w._j'f3’1fﬁi}f2024 A0 B
L = e | R e Ty 2N
'Re__!'a_lflf'vq P e R f : e :
Diréclqr“"i.c. 1A 2 e o

Son of Mry ;
Darshan == - &
Dashani R B i : j
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¥ar and on behalf of Board of Directors ol
For, TEA POST PRIVATE LIMITED
Date: §5.09.2424

[
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Place: Ahmedabad

Darshan Anilbhai Dashani Puneet Tibrewala

Managmg Dm:cmr Director

-~ DIN: 08015082
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MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Tea Post Povate Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tea Post Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows

for the year then ended, and Notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 as amended from time to time
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2024, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (“SAs™). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAL”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us in terms of his report referred to in the Other Matters secaon
below, is sufficent and appropnate o provide 2 basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Informatioa Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprses the information included in the Board’s report including
Annexure to Board’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our report thereon.

Our opinion on rthe financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is matenally inconsistent with the financial statements ot
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materally misstated.

1f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
informarion, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in
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MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act wath respect
to the preparation and presentation of these finanaal statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position and financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecung frauds and other irregulanties;
selection and application of approprate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal finandal controls, thar were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentanion of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due o fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternanve but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a} Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The dsk of not detecting a material
misstatemnent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, miscepresentations, or the overnde of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audirt in order to design audit procedures that
are approprate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounnng estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the approprateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to contdnue as a going concern. [f we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in Q%
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

¢) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Mareraliry 1s the magnirude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced, We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (1i) to evaluate the effect
of any idenufied misstatements in the standalone fnancial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
riming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relaionships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, 2
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so fac as
it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheer, the Sratement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Starement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting Standards (AS) specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

¢) On the basis of the written representations recetved from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors js disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemnal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company since,
the Company is not a Public Company as defined u/s 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, the reporting
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable during the year.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informarion
and according to the explanations given to us:

1 The Company does not have any pending lirigations on its financial position in its financial
statements.

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

il.  There are no amounts which are required to be transferred Investor FEducaton and

Protection Fund by the Company.

wv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belef, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium of any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) ot entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultrnare Beneficiares.

(b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entiies (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Uldmate Beneficiaries.

() Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  No dividend is declared or paid durng the year by the company, so reporting under clause

(f) of Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, is not applicable.

vi.  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for mainraining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, dunng the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

S 7 Harta
NFJ"S""'*‘[’
mbaw sy
SuuatS Shah] \Z \wmedatias §

Partner

Membership No.: 102651
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 5% September, 2024
[UDIN; 24102651 BKBLXD5473
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MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

“Annexure — A” referred to in tbe lodependent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Tea Post Private Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given ro us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of andit, we report that:

L. (@ © The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
derails and siruation of property, plant and equipment.
if) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particular of intangible assets;
(b) Some of the property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the
management in accordance with programme of verificadon, which in our opinion provides for
physical verification of all the property, plant and equipment at reasonable intervals. According
to the information and explanations given to us, no marerial discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(¢ With respect to immovable properties held by the company under lease, according ta the
information and explanations given to us and based on our examination, the lease deeds of such
immovable properties are registered in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and
based on the examination, the Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets during the year.

()  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and
based on the examination, no proceedings have been initated during the year or are pending
against the Company as at 31st March, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibinon) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

2. {a) Theinventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and coverage and procedure for such verification
1s approprate, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. No
discrepancies of 10% or more In the aggregate for each class of inventores were noticed on such
physical verification of inventories when compared wirh books of account.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year, the
Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 Crores from banks
or financial institutions, hence reporting under clause (i)(b) of the Order 15 not applicable.

3. The Company has not provided loans, advances in nature of loan, stood guarantee or provided security
to a company, firms, hmited Lability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause (iit) (a) to (f) of the order is not applicable.

4. In our opinion and according to the informaton and explanations given to us, the Company has not given
any loans, puarantees or securty or made any investments to which provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Act is applicable, and accordingly paragraph 3 (iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public within the meaning of the provisions of
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder, to the
extent applicable, accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable to
the company.
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6. As informed to us, the requirement of maintenance of cost records under sub section 1 of section 148

of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company during the year under audit.

7. ()

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed starutory dues
including Goods and Services rax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sales
tax, Service tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other maternal
statutory dues.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no due under dispute for
above mentioned statutory dues as on March 31, 2024

8. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of

account, in the rax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,

the requirement to report on clause 3(viif) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

9. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

books of account, we report that--

(2)

®)
©

(d

(€)

{®)

10. (3

(b)

1. ()

(b)

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or interest thereon from
any financial institution, banks, government or due to debenture holders during the year,

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
According to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans availed has been applied for
the purpose for which it has been obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and
on overall examination of financial statements of the Company, we report that funds raised on short
term basis have, not been used during the year for the long-term purpose by the Company.

The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its associates.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
associate company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/ further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/ fully or

partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanatons given to us, during the year, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government;
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13.

14.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
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(¢)  As represented ro us by the management, there are no whisde blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the apphcable accounting standard.

As informed to us, the company is mandatorly not required to have an internal audir as per provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the internal audit system is in place which is sufficient and
commensurate with the size and narure of its business. We have considered the reports of the Intetnal
Auditors for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is nor applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanatons given to us and based on our examination of the records

of the Company, we repost that--

(a)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934:

(b)j  The Company has not conducted any non-banking or housing finance actvites during the year;

(c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company, as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India;

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and also in the immediate preceding
finanaal year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviif) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dares of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attenton, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a pedod of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state thar this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our repornng is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee not any assurance thar all liabilities falling due within a period of ene year from the balance

sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees
one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the immediately
preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the
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Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for
the year.

21, There is no subsidiaries or associates of the company as at 31st March, 2024, Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(XXI) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Q..o

[Suvrat S. Shah]

Partner

Membership No.: 102651

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 5% September, 2024
UDIN: 24102651 BKBLXD5473
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MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
“ANNEXURE B” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Control clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tea Post Private Limited {“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial control based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [“ICAI”]. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the aceuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the umely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectvely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operaring effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the material misstatement of the Standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audir optnion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is 2 process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial starements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accountng principles. A Company’s internal financial control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records thar, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositgons of the assets of the company;

W *,I;,
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provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reportng

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to etror or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to furure periods are subject to the dsk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinton, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financal controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Inrernal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

[Suvrat S. Shah]
Partoer
Membership No.: 102651
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 5* September, 2024
UDIN: 24102651 BKBLXD5473
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r Tea Post Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Particulsrs Note [Rs. In Lakhs]
No. As at March 31,
2024 2023
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :
Share holders'funds:
Share Capital 1 73.10 7310
Ressrvies and Surplus 2 1.421.16 1,414.25
1,494.26 1.487.35
Non-Current Liabllities:
Long Term Borrowings 3 1554 20.68
Cther Long Term Liabllities ] 36317 277.59
Lang Term Provislons & 92.60 63.15
471.31 361.42
Current Liabtlities:
Shor Term Borrowings ] 383.67 123.70
Trade Payakies - 74
Payable to the Mier enterprises and Small enterprisas 4344 2687
Payable to others 33697 409,80
Other Current Liabilities 8 235.85 176,28
1,015.92 T36.64
Total 1;!51.50 2'55&5.41
ASSETS:
Non-Current Assets;
Property, Flant & Equipment and intangible Assets:
Property, Plant & Equipment ] 1,103.09 884,93
Intangible Assets . ) 13,22 1552
Capital Work In Progress 13.00 18.24
1,129.22 918.75
Defarred Tax Aszets [Net] HY 30144 308.40
Long Term Loans and Advances 1 288,55 23873
Other Non Current Assets 12 519.75 485.87
2,240,99 1,951.75
Current Assels:
Inventares 13 2B2.85 313,65
Trade Recemwables 14 165.61 212.79
Cash and Barik Balanices 15 69,44 25.97
short Term Loans and Advantes 16 60.19 45.42
Cther Current Assets LT 62.62 35.83
740.50 633.66
Total 2,981.50 2,585.41
Significant Accounting Folicies
Motes ta the Financlal Statements 1038
As per our repon of even For and on behall of the Board of Directars
For Mukesh b4, Shat & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 106625W

¢ g

Name : Suvrat Shah
Partner

Membership Number: 102651
Ahmedabad, Dated: 05.09.2024

Darshan Bashani
Director

DIN: 00519928 DIN: 08015082
Ahmedabad, Dated; 05.08.2024




Tea Post Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Note [Rs. In Lakhs)
No. Year ended March 31,
2424 2023
INCOME:
Revenue from Operations 19 542270 4,597.07
Other Income 0 44,91 3153
Total Income 5467.61 442899
EXPENSES:
Purchase of s1ock in trade 21 220354 2,248.32
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 2 31.00 (124.29)
Employee Benefits Expense 23 131937 896,76
Finance Costs 24 3764 6.64
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses B 29219 186.28
Other Expenses 5 1,671.01 1,161:30
Total Expenses 5,454,74 4,375.01
Profit before Tax 12.88 53.95
Less/{Add]: Tax Expense;
Current Tax - .
Deferred Tax 11 596 S.85
Prior year's tax adjustments - .37
Tota! 5.96 6.12
Profit for the year 5.91 47.86
Basic & Diluted Farning per Equity Share {EPS] [ in Rupees | 26 0.35 &.55
Significant Accounting Pollcies
Notes to the Financlal Statements 1o 38
hs per ven date For and on behall of the Board of Directors
For Mukesh M. Shah & Co. .
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number, 106625W

L

Name : Suvrat Shah Darshan Dashanl
Partner Director
Membership Number: 102651 DIN; 00519928 DiN: 0BO1S082

Ahmedabad, Dated: 05,09.2024 Ahmedabad, Dated: 05.09.2024




Tea Post Prlvate Limited
Significant Accounting Pollcies

A Company Querview:

1 Tea Post Private mited [the company] was incorporated an 05/11/2015. The company’s registered olfice is situated a1 D-001, Elanda crest, Ne
Bajarang Char ragta, Sindhu bhavan Road, Ahmedabad - 380059, The company is engaged in the Calé business (Restaurant Service) and Franchisee
Blsiness.

B Significam Accounting Policles

1 Basis of Accounting:
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the "Accrus| Coneept” of accountancy In accardance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India and they comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies [Accourts] Rules, 2014 and other proncuricerment issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India [ICAL, to the extent spplicable, and with the applicabile provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2 Use of Estimates:
The preparation of Financial Statements In conformity with the Accounting Standards generally sccepted In India requires; the management 1o
make astimatas and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and dlsclosure of contingent llatilitles as 2t the date
of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the reporting perlod. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Any revision to accaunting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future penods,

3 Propery, Plant & Equipment:

A The Property, Plant and Equipment sre stated at historicsl cost of scquisition/construetion less sccumulated depreciation and impairment logs.

The cost [Nt ol input tax credit recelved/receivable] Includes refated expenditure incurred I cannection with the assets for the period up
to completion of co nst_rumanf Bisets are put 1o use.

4 Deprecialtion & Amortisation:

A Depreciation on tangible assets s provided on “writtén down value method”. Useful life of 1angible assets as per following detalls are

differant fram that prescribed in Schedule |1 of the Act, which have been arrived at based on technical evaluation. The management belleves
that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the perlod over which the assets are likely to be used,
However, management raviews the resldual values, useful lives and methods of deprication of praperty, plant and equipment at resscneble
Intervals. Any revision to these is recognized prospectively in current and future periods:

Sr. Mo, [Nature of Tangible Assets Estimated Economic Life
1 Furmiture 8 Years
2 Plant and Machinery 5 Years

B Depreciation on additions/disposals of the rangible assets during the reporting peried i provided on pro-rata basis according to the period
during which the sssets are put 1o use.
€ Intangible asseste are amortized on Stralght-line Method over a period of sstimated economic life of those assets as per the tollowing table.

Sr. No.  |Nature of Intangible Assets Estimated Economic Lite
1 Gopdwill 10Years
2 Trademark 3 Years
3 Software 3 Years

S Inventories:
Inventery of Stock-in-Trde is valued at lower of the cost on FIFQ Basis and net realisable value.
& Revenue Recognition:
A Sale of Products at Restaurant
The eompary Recognizes revenue fram sale of food through company's gwned stores and sre recagrized whan nems ate dellvered to.or
carried out by customers and the same ls accounted net of discount and excludes taxes collected from customers,
B Sale of Traded Goods
The company recognizes Revenue fram sale of supplies 1o Its franchised stores upon delivery of the products. Revenue |5 measured baied
an the consideration 1o which company expects 1o be entitled from custamer, riet of discount and excludes taxes collected from customers,
€ Franchisee Income
Royalty Income |5 recognized on accrual basisin accordance with the terms of relevant agreement.
Lumnp-surn franchisee fees and outlet setup charge received from the franchises Is retognised in the year lnwhich outlet setup starts,
O Other lncome .
Interest ncome |s recegnized on tlime proportion basis.
Revenue in respect of other income is recognized when no significant uncertainty as to determination or realisation exlists.
7 Insurance Clalms
Significant Judgments are invalved in determining estimated value likely to be received in respect of insurance claims lodged |n respect of
loss/damage to properties/stock of the company.
8 Forelgn Currency Transactions:
A The Company’s financial stalements are gresented In Indian Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency,
B Foreign currency transactions aré accounted using an exchange rate prevalling on the date of transaction
€ The net gain or foss on account of exchange differance elther on settlement or on tranelation is recegnized In the profit or loss sccount
D Foreign currency assets or Hubllities existing as at the balance sheet date have been re-stated at the exchange rate prevatent on the balance
sheet date, the difference on translation has been recogrized to the foreign exchange fluctudtion géin/ loss account and thie same is
recognised in the statement of Peafit and Loss,
9 Employee Benefits:
A Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company contributes on a defined contribution basls to Employees' Provident Fund and Employee state Insurance Scheme Contribution
towards post employrnent beriefits, 3ll of which are administered by the respective Governrment autherities, and has no further ohligation
beyond making its contnbution, which is expensed in the year to which It pertains,
Defined Benefit Plans:
The gratuty fability for the defined benefit plan of Gratuity is determined on the basis ol an actuarial valiation by an indeperdent actuary
at the end of the year, which ts calculated using prajected-unit credit methed
Actuarial galns and losses which comprise experience adjustment and the effect of changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
statemeant of Profit and Loss.
Leave Liability:
The Emplayees of the Company are entitled to leave a3 per the policy of the Company. The liability an account of unutilised leave a< on the
last date ls accounted on the basis of llability calculated by an Independent actuary.
10 Taxes on Incomia:
A Tax expenses comprise of current and deferred tax,
B Current tax lsmeasured 51 the amount expected to be pald on the basis of rellefs and deductions avallabile In sccordanse with the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961, >,
€ Deferred tax reflects the impact of current year timing diiferences between accounting and tanable income and reversal ot iming différences:
of earller years. Deferred tax 15 measured based on the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted a5 on the balance =
sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recoghized only to the extent there is ressongble certainy that sufficlent lutur taxakie Income will be
avallable against which such deferred tax assets'can be realised and are reviewad al each balance sheet date.
11 Provisions, Contingent Liabllities and Contingent Assets:
Prowvision i recognisad when the company has a p oblhgation as a resuit of past events and 1 is probable that the outfow of respurces
will be required to settie the obligation and in respect of which reliable estimates can be made. A disclosure for contingent lability 1 made
when there Is a possible obligation, that may, but prabably will net require an outflow of rescurces. Wheri there Is a passible obligation or a
present obligation In respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources {s remate; no provision / disclousure 1s made, Contingentassets
are not recogrised in the financial statements. Provisions and cantingencies are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the cortect management estimates.

~




Tea Post Private Limied
Wotes to the Financial Statements

|Rs. In Lakhs)]
Particulars As at March 31,
2024 | 2023
Mote : 1 - Share Capltal :
Authorised:
16,00,000 {as a1 21-03-23 : 10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 100.00 100.00
30,00,000 [as at 31-03-23 : 30,00,000] Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of fis. 10 each 300.00 300.00
200.00 400.00
tssued, Subscribed and Pald-up;
7,30,979 [as at 31-03-23 : 7,80,979] Equity Sharas of 5,10 each, fully paid-up 73.10 73.10
73.10 73.10
. — =
& The reconciliation of the number of Equity Shares oulstanding s as under:
Particulars
Number of shares at The beginning 7.30,978 727683
Add: New Shares issued during the year - 3,296
Add: Equity Shares issued on conversion of Preference Shares during the year = =]
Mumber of shares at the end _7,30.879 7,30,979
B Allequity shares rank parl passuand carry equal rights with respect to voling and dividend. In the event of ligquidation of the Company, the
equity shareholders shall be eatitied to proporticnate share of their halding in the azsets remained after distribution of all preferential emounts,
| The Compulsory Convertible Preserence Shares [CCPS] converted to equity shares on dth February, 2022
it The valuation at which the said CCPS are canverted into equity shares, has been derived at 20% per annum discount of the valuation certified
by the registared valuer at the lime of conversions shares ar at the time next infusion of funds by way of eguity shares in The Company,
D Detalls of Share Holders halding mora than 5% of Equity Shares of Rs_ 10 each, fully paid:
Name of the Shareholders As at March 31,
2024 2023
No. of Shares % of Total N of Shares % of Total
Sharenolding Shareholding
Acclalm Enterprise LLP 3,05,841 41.8B4% 3,05,841 a1,84%
|ndia Nivesh Venture Capital Fund 3,00,052 41.05% 3,00,052 41.05%
Aaradhya Tradebiz LLP 66,212 9.06% 66,212 2.06%
£ Details of promaters holding Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each, fully paid:
Namie of the Shareholders Az at March 31, % Change
2024 2023 during the
Ne. of Equity % of Total No, af Eguity % of Total year
Shares hefd Sharehelding Shares held Shareholding
Darshan Anilbhal Dashani 1 Q.00% 1 0,005 0.00%
Acclaim Enterpeize LLP 3,05.841 41,84% 3,05,841 41 Ba% 0.00%
MNote : 2 - Reserves and Surplus :
Securities Premium;
Balance as per last Balance Sheer 228771 2,248.06
Add: Premiums on Equity shares issued during the year 39.65
Balance as at the-end of the year 2,287.71 2,287.71
Surplus In statement of Profit and Loss:
Balance as per last Balance Sheet (873.46) {921.33)
Add: Profit for the year 651 47.86
Balance as atthe end of the year |866.55) (873.46)
Total 142116 1,414.25
Note i 3 « Long Term Borrowings :
[Rs. In Lakhs])
As at March 31,
Non-carrent portion Current Maturlties
2024 2023 2024 2823
Secured term loans from bank 15.54 2068 7.74 9,67
Total 15.54 20.68 7.74 2.67
Tatal amount includes:
Secured borrowings 15.54 20:68 174 9.67
Amount disclosed under the head "Short term borrowings” [rafer Note-5] . . (7.74) {9.67)
Total 15,54 20,68 - -
Securities and Terms of repayment for Term Loans:
@ Carloan fram [CICI Bank is primarlly secuced by charge on Car.
The loan ls repayable in'60 monthly instalments (S99 instalments of R8s 40,23% each and last Ihstalment of Rs. 40,191) started from May 2021,
Ihterestis 7.60% p.a,
The outstanding amount as a1 March 31, 2024 is Rs. 9.27 Lakhs {Out of which 4.27 Lakhz is payable within next 12 months)
[as-atMarch 31, 2023 Rs. 33:23 Lakhs].
b Car loan from ICICI Bank is primarlly secured by charge on Car.
The loan Is repayable in 60 monthly instalments [59 instalments of Rs. 40,321 each and last Instalment of Rs. 40,311 started from Oct 2022,
Interest is 11% p.a.
The outstanding amount as 3t March 31, 2024 1s Rs. 14.00 Lakhs (Out of which 3.47 Lakhs |s payable within next 12 months)
[asat March 31, 20231 Ra. 17,11 Lakhs].
Note : 4 - Other Long Term Llabilities :
Cther Long Term Liabilites:
Deposits fram Franchidess 363:17 27759
Total 363.17 277.59
Note : 5 - Long Term Provisions ¢
Long Term Provisions:
Provision For Gratuity [See note No. 35 for details) 62.11 35.55
Provision for Leave Encashment [See nate No, 35 for demils) J N 30,49 27,60
Total | 92,60 63.15
=
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Tea Post Private Limited
Notes to the Financlal Statements

[Rs. In Lakhs]
PFartlculars As at March 31,
2024 | 2023
Nole : 6 - Short Term Borrowings :
Demand loan from Banks : [Secured] [*] 39193 11403
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt | [refer Note-2] 774 9.67
Total 399.67 133.70 |
[*] Securitles and Terms of Dverdraft limit for Worklng capital Requirement
Warking Capital loan repayable on demand from Bank s primarily secured by Pledge of Fixed deposits.
interast i5.0.9% to 1% over FD rate.
Note : 7 - Trade Payables :
Dues of Micrs Enterprizes and Small Entecprises [*) 43:44 16.87
Dues of Others 33697 409,80
Totai 380.41 436,67
1*] Disciosure in respact of Micro and Small Enterprises:
A Frinclpal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end 43,44 26.87
B Interest due thereon .
C Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 af the MSMED, alorg with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyand the appointed day during the year - -
b amount of interest dus and payable for the period of delay In making payment [which have
been pald but beyond the appainted day during the year] but without adding the
interest specified under the MSMED Act . .
E amount of Interest accrued and remalning unpaid at the end of the accounting year 1.38 L10D
The abave information has been complled in respect of parties 1o the extent to which they could be
Identified as Micro and Small Enterprises.on the basis of informatian available with the Company.
ageing of Trade Payables
[A] As at 31st March, 2024 [Rs, In Lakhs]
Partlculars Not Due Lessthan 1year | 1102 years 2to3years | Maore than 3 years Total
Undisputed Micro and Small Enterprises [MSME] . 43,44 . - . 43.44
{Undisputed Others . 31852 737 3.83 6.35 336.97
Disputed MSME & ) = 5 = .
Disputed Others - - E E - -
Total - 362.96 7.27 3.;3 6.35 380.41
[B) Asat 31st March, 2023 [Rs. In Lakhs]
Particulars Nat Due Lessthan lyear| 1to2years 2103 years | More than 3 years Total
Undisputed Micre and Small Enterprises |MSME] - 2687 - : 26.87
Undisputed Gthers 5 39891 383 3.52 354 409.80
Disputed MEME z - 3 : ¥ .
Disputed Others. 3 . - E . .
Total - 425.78 3.83 352 3.54 436.67
Note ; 8 - Other Currant Liabllitles :
Advances from Customers 7240 5158
Expenses Payable 123.80 98.83
(thars:
Payable 1o Statutory Autharities 29.64 15.87
Total 235,85 176.28
Note ; 9 - Froperty, Plant & Equip tand ible A 3
A Property, Plant & Equipment:
o Plant, Furniture Vehicle Computer and Electrical Total
Immovable Machinery Data Processing Installation
Assets  gnd Office Units
Equipments
Gross Block::
Balance 3331 Apro b, 2023 407,85 297.10 547,935 072 §5.66 102.42 15170 084.23
Additions 153,67 BI.ED 224.92 % 19.75 34,90 2192 59351
Disposals 600 26,74 47.00 - 800 142 89.16 66,03
Other adjustments - - - 2 - - . =
Balance as at Mar. 31, 2024 555.52 380.05 725.87 70.72 87,40 135.90 1,945.47 1511.71
Depreciation:
Balance at at Aor. 1, 2023 92.06 150,97 257,10 29,80 61.08 35.69 626,70 457,34
Charge far the year 41,97 79.23 108,83 1577 18,90 20,00 28163 179.65
Disposals 119 21,47 36.63 850 0.52 66,01 10.30
Other adjustments - - - . . - -
Halance as-a! Mar. 31, 2024 13283 209.03 329,30 42&6 73.48 5547 84233 626.69
Net Block:
Balance as at Apr. 1, 2023 315.79 146,13 290.86 A0.93 457 65.72 B85.00 526.87
Balarice &5 at Mar. 31, 2024 422.69 151:.02 396.58 28.16 23.9_2 80.73 1,103.02 B884.99




Tea Post Private Limited
Notes to the Financlal Statements

[Rs. In Lakhg]
Particulars As at March 31,
2024 Wit 3023
8 Intangible Assets: Goodwlll Tmdemark  Softwates Total
Gross Block; )
Balance ssat Apr. 1, 2023 20,03 602 24.69 50.75 43.64
Additians - 4.82 328 8.10 710
Disposals . 5 - " -
Other adjustments s - - v -
Balance as at Mar. 31, 2022 20.03 10.84 27.97 58.84 50.75
Depreciation: —T —
Balance as st Apr. 1, 2023 14,29 2.65 18.28 3522 2861
Charge for the year 149 160 T4l 1050 B.&6)
Disposals . = 2 5
Other ad|ustments - - - - -
Balance a3 at Mar. 31, 2024 15.78 4.26 25.69 45.72 35.22
Net Block:
Balance asatApr. 1, 20123 5.74 3.37 641 15.52 15.03
Balance as at Mar, 31, 2024 4E; £.53 Lg 13.12 15,52
C Ageing of Capltal work-in-prograss: 2024 2023
Projects In progress:
Less than 1year 5.00 18.24
12 yaars .00 :
2-3vyears - -
Mare than 3 years A -
Total Capital work-in-progress 13.00 18.24
Note : 10 - Deferred Tax :
&  The reversai of deferred tax assets of 85,96 Lekhs [Merch 31, 2023: [reversal of Net deferred tax asset) 5,85 Lakhs] for the year
his been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass.
B Break upof Oeferred Tax Uabifities and Assets into major comper s of the resp balances sre-as under
A, [n Lakhsf
Charge for Charge far
As at the previaus Asat the current As al
Deferred Tax Assets:
Depreciation 74,46 1924 4370 2864 122.34
Unabsorbed depratiation/Business Loss 225.49 (31.89) 19380 {54.05) 142,55
Emplolyes benefits 14,30 6.80 2140 792 23.02
Others - - = 853 853
Tatal 31435 (5.85) 308.40 |5.96) 302.44
Net Deferred Tax Asset 314.25 {5.85) 308.40 (5:98) 302:44
Note : 11 - Long Term Loans and Advances :
|Unsecured, Considered Good|
Security Deposits 5796 125.09
Other Loans and Advances:
Advance payment of Tax ‘3158 13.64
Total 2.89_.-55 238.73
Note ; 12 - Othér Non Current Assets :
Bank Deposits having maturity of more than 12 manths {including Accrued Interest therson) [*] 519.79 ABS.BT
Total 519.79 AB5.B7
= =
[*] Earmarked balamces with banks:
o Bank Deposits include amounts to the extent held as rargin money deposits against overdraft facility
from Scheduled banks. 519.79 485.87
Note : 13 - Invéntories |
[The Inventory is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Classification of Inventories:
Trading Goods 2865 313.65
Total 282.65 313.65
S==




Tea Post Private timited
Motes to the Financial Statements

[Rs. In Lakhs]

Particulars As at March 31,

2024 [ 2023

Note : 14 - Trade Recelvables

Unsecured - Considered Good 6143 208.61
Disputed ~ considered good 4.19 419
Total 265.6% 212,79
Ageing of Trade Recelvables :
[A] As at 31st March, 2024 [Re. In Lakhs]
Farticul Not due Lessthan lyear | 1102 vears 2103 years Mare than 3 years Total
Undisputed — considered good - 12949 28,03 .67 1.23 261.43

Undisputed - have significant increase incredit risk - - - . 3 ”
Undisputed — cradit impaired & . - - b o
Disputed —considered good - - - - 419 418
Cisputed - have significant Increase in credit nsk - = - - i
Disputed - credit impaired a - = - ' 5

Tatal - 229.49 ZB.EE 2_._6? 5.42 265.61
[8] As at 315t March, 2023 [R5, In Lakhs]
Particulars ot due Less than 1 year 110 2 years 2to dyears Maore than 3 vears Total

Undisputed - cansidered good . 200.38 350 353 148 208.61

Undisputed ~ have significant increase in credit risk - - . = . 2
Undisputed - credit impaired - - - 3 : =
Disputed ~ considered good - . - 4.19 - 4,19
Disputed - have significant increase in credit risk S 3 - 5 . N
Disputed - credit impaired . - . . : r
Total - 200.38 3.50 7.72 1.19 212.73

Note : 15 - Cash and Bank Balances ;
Cash and Cash ivalents ;
Balances with Banks

Current, Cash credit accaunts [*] A7.34 14.03

LCash on Hand 18.74 B.92

|*] Refer Cash Flow Statement for detalled understanding 66.09 22.95
Other Bank falances

Deposits other than cash and cash eguivalents 335 3.02

Total 69.44 25.97

Nate : 16 - Short Term Loans and Advances :
|Unsetured. Considered Good)

Advances 1o Suppliers 27.25 214,06
Advances 1a Related Parties.
Salary Advance to Uirectors 15.00 -
Other advances 17.94 21.36
Tatal 60.19 45.42 |
Note : 17 - Other Current Assets :
Interest Recejvable 0.33 0.16.
Insurance Claim Receivable 7.80 .
Prapaid Expenses 27.28 1
Royalty Receivable 27.09 14,55
Total 62,62 35.83
MNote : 18 - Contingent Liablliities and ¢ i [to the extent not provided for]
A Contingent Liabilithes:
In respect of Guarantees given by bank and ccunter-guarantes given by the company 2.00 8.00

8 Cammitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net of advances) - 24.50




Tea Post Private Limited
Motes to the Financlal Statements

[Rs. 1 Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended March 31,
2024 | 08
Note : 19 - Revenue from Operations :
Sale of Products 4,807 392 3,624.54
Sale of Sarvices
floyalty Income 324.64 292:11
Franchizee Income 199.74 187.06
Store setup income B5.40 293.36
Marketing Income 5.00 .
Total 5,422.70 4,397.07
==
Note : 20 - Other Income :
fnterest income [Gross|:
Interast Income from Flxed Deposits i8.26 2755
Cither Interest .56 132
Sundry balances Written back (Net) 379 0.20
Miscelianzous Income 231 2.56
Total 44.81 31.93
Note : 21 - Purchase of Stock In trade ¢
Purchase of Stock In trade 211484 2,002.8%
Other Direct Expenses
Store setup Expernse 72.02 224.34
Freight 15.73 i iy
Packing Material 1.15 1.62
Total 2,203.54 2.248.32
e —
Note:22-Ch n b jes:
Stock at close:
Trading Goods 282.65 213.65
282.65 313.65
Less: Stock 2t commencement:
Trading Goads 313.65 189.36
313.65 189.36
Total 3100 (124.28)
MNote : 23 - Employes Benefit Expense :
Salaries and wages 1,058.77 79180
Contribution to provident and other funds [] 12013 6865
Staff wellare expenses 40,47 38.21
Total 1,219.37 896.76
{*] The Compamy's contribution towards the defined cantribution plan The Campany makes Provident Fund 7389 43.54
contributions to defined contribution retirement benafit plans for qualifying employees, a3 specified under
the law. The contributians are paid to the respective Reglonal Provident Fund Commissionss under the
Pension Scherme. The company |s generally liable for annual contribution and recognises such contributian
a5 an expense 10 the year in which it Is incurred.
Note : 24 - Finance Cost :
Intarest expenss [* 32,69 5.08
Bank commission & charges 4.95 L.56
Total 37.64 6.64
[*] The break up of Interest expense in 1o/major heads Is given befow:
On working capital lcans 78.50 132
On term (oans 55 232
Others 1.65 143
Total 32.69 5.08




Tea Post Private Limited
Motes 1o the Financial Statements

[Rs. In Lakhs]
Particulars Year ended March 31,
2024 il | 2023
Note : 25 - Other Expenses !
Power & fuel 15095 86,95
Rent Expense [*] 750,55 42332
Repairs to immovable Assets 228 2.44
Repairs to Plant and Machinery 19.42 2371
Repairs 1o Others 29.81 3799
Insurance 8:17 651
Rites and Taxes [encluding taxes on Income] 8.83 676
Commiunication Expense 10,05 8.22
Water Charges 345 3.55
Courler Expanse 1.64 170
Frinting and Statlonery Expenses 489 529
Traveling and Conveyance Expenses 110.34 99.81
Legal and Professianal Fees 5755 104,57
Payment to the suditors as:
Audit tees 4.00 1.00
Fers for taxation matters 100 0.50
Advertisement and Publicity 125.69 10385
Commission Expenses 22543 144.12
Housekeeping Expense 2338 1521
Freight and fgrwarding on sales 71.42 48.18
Security Charges E31 467
Loss on Discard of assets 1171 2385
General Expanses 41.61 9.03
Total 1,671.01 Ll-ﬁi'.gi
[*] The Campany has taken various office premises, Stores, Café and godowns under operating leasa or leave and
license agreament with ne restrictions and are reneWwable/ cancellable at the option of either of the parties.
The lease payments are recognised under the "Rert Expenses”
Note : 26 - Calculation of Earnings per Equity Share [EPS] -
The aumetators and denaminators used to calculate the basic and diluted EPS are as follows:
A Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders [Rs. in Lakhs) 6591 4787
B Basicand weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year Nes 7,320,979 7,30.825
C MNominal value of equity share InRs 10 10
D Basic & Diluted EPS In Rs 095 E.55
Note : 27 - Value of Imports calculated on OF basis ;
Import Purchase | | 51.43
Note : 28 - Expenditure in Foreign Currency :
Trademark application fees 482
Rent, Legal & Prolessional Charges 9.82 9.68
Note : 29 - Eamings In Forelgn Exchange:
| nil | Nil
Note ; 30 - Remittances made on account of dividend in Foreign currency :
| il | Nl

Note ; 31 - Related Party Transactions |

A Name of the Related Party and Nature of the Related Party Relationship:
A Directors:
Darshan Anilbhal Dashanl
Raminder singh Rekhi

Funeet Tibrewala

8 Relatives of Directors
Sarmir Dashani Raminder singh Rekhi - HUF
Devika Aekhi Divya Darshan Dazham
layvardhan Dashanl

€ Enterprises significantly influenced by Directors or thelr relatives

[ D Polytronics {india) Frivate Limited
Arrlaim Enterprise LLP
Tea Post Wellwish Foundation

B The followlng transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ardinary course of busl

Omega Designs Private Limited
CLR Facility Services Private Limited
First Bridge Investment Managers Private Limited

Value of the Transactions [Rs. In Lakhs]

Directors Relatives of Directors Enterprises significantly influenced by
Directors or their Relatives
Year ended March 31,
2024 2023 2024 1023 2024 2023

Sales

Darshan Anllohai Dashani . 0.06 - =

Samir Dashani - - .09 0.23 - -

Devika Rekhi . - 0.06 002 . #

Flrst Bridge Investmeant Managers

Private Limited z 42 LA

Total - 0.06 0.15 026 002 1.14
Expenses

Tea Post Wellwish Foundation - - - - 0:26 0.10

Acclalm Enterprise (P - - . L3 P

Raminder singh Rekhl - HUF - - 355 3:11 = P

Total 3.5% n 1.39 0.10
Remuneration

Darshan anilthal Dashani £7.00 42.83 + . = L

Raminder singh Rekhi 35.88 AQLTD - . = -

Samir Dashani - . 3900 28.08 - -

layvardhan Dashani - - 1.08 - = -

Total 40.08 28.08 - -




Tea Post Private Limited
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Note : 31 - Related Party Transactions [Continua]:

Value of the Transactlons [Hs. In Lakhs]

6Z,11
—

Directors Relstives of Directors Enterprises significantly influenced by
Directors or their Relatives
Year ended March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Issue of Share Capital {Ing] Premium}
Divya Darshan Dashan) - £ 10,00 5
Total 10.00 =
Finance
Deposit Repayment
Raminder singh Rekhi - HUF 3.00 3.00 = -
Total 3.00 3.00 - -
Recelvable
Rarminder Singh Rekhi 14,72 3 - - -
First Bridge Investment Managers ] J 002 R
Private Limited
Total 14.72 - - 0.0z -
Payable
Raryinder Singh Qekhl B 345 . = =
Samir Dashani - 365 .19 2 -
Raminger singh Rexhi - HUF - . 033 029 = =
Carshan Anilbhal Dashani 3.69 213 - o = -
Taotai 3.69 5.59 3.99 L9 - -
Note: 32 - Employee Benefits :
Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard-15 [Revised] 'Employee Benefits’:
Defined benefit plan and long term employment benefit
& General description:
ed ben H
The Company has a defined benefit grazulty plan. Every employes who has completed continuous services of flve vears or more, gelsa
gratulty on death ar resignation or retirement at 15 days salary [last drawn salary] for each compieted year of wervice,
Rs, In Eakhs]
As at Misech 31
024 2023
Gratuity Pre. Leave Gratuity Pro_ Leave
B Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:
Opening defined benefit obligation 35.55 27.60 2433 1567
Interest cost 253 187 1.28 -
Current service cost 1171 1338 1497 11.93
Benefits pald 10.79) {2:44} (053}
Actuarial [guin]/lesses an obligation 13.12 (9:932) [4.50) -
Closing defined benefit obligation 62,11 30,49 3555 27.60
€ Change In the fair value of plan assets:
Opening {alr value of plan assets i s ;
Expected return on plan assets . z
Contributions by employer o
Benefits paid - - =
Actuarial gaing/[losses] x - -
Closing falr value of plan assets - = ’
Total actuarial [gain] / loss (o be recognised 1312 {9.92) [4.50) -
D Actual return on plan assets:
Expected return on plan aszets - - - -
Actuarisl gain/[loss} on plan assets - -
Actual return on plan assets - - - -
E Amount recognlsed In the balance sheet:
|Assets]/Liabllity at the end of the reporting period 62.11 30.49 3555 2760
Fait value of plan Assets at the end of the reperting period - =
Difference 6211 30.49 35.55 2780
Unrecognised past Service cost . -
[Assets]/Labllity recognized in the Balance Sheat 5211 30.49 35.55 2?&
F [income]/Expenses recognised In the statement of Profit and Loss:
Current service cost LT 13,38 14.57 1193
Interest cost on benefit obligation 253 1.87 1.28 -
Expected return on plan assels - - -
MNet actusnial [gain]/loss in the
reparting period 13.12 (3.92) (%.50) -
Het [banefit]/espanse 27.35 5.33 11.75 11.93
G Movement In net fizbiiity recognized In Balance Sheet:
Q'pemng net lability 35.55 2780 2433 15.67
Expenses a3 above [P & L Charge] 2735 533 11.75 11,93
Benefits paid {0.79) 12.44) 10.53) -
Emplayer's cantribution - - - -
|Assets]/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 30.42 35.85 21,60
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Note: 32 - Employee Benefits [Continue] -

H Principal actuarlal assumptions as at Balance sheet date:

Discount rate T.A0% T.10% 7% 7.20%
| The rate of discaunt is considered based on market yield on Government Bonds having currency and
terms cansistence with the currency and terms of the post emplayment benefit obligations]

Expectad rate of retutn on plan Assets LY WA M NA
[The expected rate of return assumed by the insurance company is generally basad on thelr Investment
patterns as stipulated by the Government of India]

Annual Increass In salary cast 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% £.00%
[The-estimates of future salary incrasses considered in actuarial valuation, takirg inte acsount inflation,
senlority, pramation and ather celevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market)

Amount recognised In current and previous four years:

Amount Rs. In Lakhs
As at March 31,

Gratulty: 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Defined benefit obligation . 14,35 24,33 35.55 62.11
Fair value of Plan Asseis - - . - -
Deficit/ [Surplus] it the plan . 1435 2433 35.55 62.11
Actuarial [Loss] / @ain Plan Obligation - {10.73) (0.52) 14.50) 13.12
Actuarial [Loss) / Gair gn Plan Agsets 3 = = - 2

The expected contributions for Defined Benefit Plan for the next financial year will be in ling with FY 202%-24
The average duration of future service of defined benefit plan obligation st the end of the year s 2.20 years [as at Mareh 3], 2023 ¢ 2.20 years).

Note:33- Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of the current year.

Note : 34 - ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEQULE 1 TG THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(I} The Campany doas net have any benami praperty held in its name, No proceedings have bsen injtiated on ar are pending against the Conypany fer holding
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prahibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1388) and Rules made thersunder.
{ii]) The Company has not been declarad wilful defaultar by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or any governmens authority.
{ili) The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to nutriber of layers as prescribed under section 2871 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Restriction on number of |ayers) Rules, 2017,
{lv) There is noincame surrendered or disclosed as income durimg the year |n tix assessmants undar the Incame Tax Act, 1961 {such as sesrch or survey), that has
not been recorded in the books of account.
(¥} The Company has not traded or investad in eryplo currency or virtual currency during the year.
|vl} The Company does not have any chargas or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies bayond the statutory period,
[vit} There are ne Scheme of Arrangements which has been approved by the Competent Authotity in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 during
the year.
[vlii} As per the information svailable with the Company, the:Company has no transactians with the companies struck off undar Companies Act, 2013

Note : 35 - The Company doas not anticigate any challanges in its ability to continie 2s 3 galng cancern.

Note : 36 -
No lurids have been advanted or loaned of invested [either from borrowed funds or share premium or any ather sources or Kind of funds) by the Company 1o or In
any other persan(s) or entity(les), including forelgn entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or ingirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by of on behalf of the Company {"Ultimate
Beneficlarias”) or provide any guarantee, security of the ke on behalf of the Uhtimate Beneficiaries.

Note: 37 -
Nofunds have been received by the Company from any persen(s) or entity(ies), including ferelgn entities (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recarded In writing or otherwise; that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest In ather parsoris or entities identified in any manner
whatsaever by or on behall of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries"} or provide any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Note: 38-Analytical Ratlos:

51, Type Numerator Denominator F.Y, 2023.24 F.Y. 2022-23 % Change Explanation If there ls a change
No. In the ratio by more than 25%
1 |Current Ratio |Total current assets Total current lighllities 0.73 0.86 -15% NA
{ln times)
2 |Debt - Equity |Debt consists of Total equity 0,28 0.10 186% Borrowing af the company increased
Ratis borrowings and lease during the year
{In times) llabilitles,
3 (Debt- Service {Earning for Debn Service |Debt service = Interest and Jease £39 2838 B8 Degrease In profit dunng the year
Coverage = Met Profit after taxes « |payments + Principal repayments
Ratia Non-cash operating
{In timnes) expenses + Interest +
Other non-cash
ediustments
4 |Interest Profit for the year = Fimance Cost 9.0 3721 ~16% Decreass n prafit during the year
Coverage Profit before tax, Extia
{In times) Crdinery ltern, Depr. &
Finance Cost
§ [Returnon Profit for the year fess  |Average total equity 0.46% 3.30% -86% Decrease in profic during the year
Equity Ratle | Preference dividend {if
(%) any)
& |Inventory to |Cost of Material Average Inventory 7.39 8.94 -17% NA,
Turngver produced
Ratio
[In times]
7 (Trade Revenue from Average trade recewables 2287 23.91 -5% NA
Receivable ta |operations
Turower Ratio
{in times)
g |Trade Payable |Cost of Raw Material & |Average trade payables 5.39 6.88 ~22%: NA
10 Turgyar Fi3 Purchased
Ratio
L liin times)
9 |Net capital Revenue from Average working caphal (1.e Tatal (28.66) 14.64 -196% Decrease (n warking capital
lurnover 1atio (operations current assets less Total current
{In times) liabilives
10 |Opersting Profit for the year = Revenue from oparations 0.93% 1.38% -32% NA
Profit Margin |Profit before tax, Extra
(%) Crdinery lterm & Finance
[Cost
11 [Met Profit Profit for the year Revanue from cperations 0.13% 1.05%) -B8% Decrease in profit during the year
L 1Ratio (%)
12 |Returnon Profit for the vear = Capital employed = Net warth + 3.35% 4.00% -17% NA
Capital Profitbefore tax, Extra |Long Term Borrowings
Employed (%) |Ordinery tem & Finance
Cost
13 [Return on Income generated from | Average invested funds . - NA A
Irvestments  [imvested funds
%)

Signatures 1o Slgnlficant Accounting Policies and Notes 1 to 38 to the Financial Statements

As'per our repart of even date

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accourtants

Firm Registration Number: 106625W

ce

Name : Suvrat Shah
Partner

Membership Number: 102651
Abmedabad, Dated: 05.08.2024

For and an behalf of the Baard of Directors

Darshan Cashani

Director

Din: 00518828

Ahmedahad, Dated: 05.03.2024




TEA POST PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

[Rs. In Lakhs]

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before 1ax 12.88 53.98
Adjustments for:
Depreciation fAmortisation of Property, Plant & Equipment and intangible 292,19 186.28
Loss on Discarded Asset 11.71 23.85
Interest Income {38.82) {28.77)
Interast Expense 32.69 5.08
Long term Provisions 29.46 23.14
Operating Profit/ (Loss) before changes in working capital 340.10 263.57
Adjustment for (Increase)/ Decrease in Operating Assets
Inventories 31,00 {124.29]
Trade Receivables 152.82) (57.6Q)
Short term Loans and Advances (24.77) 8.52)
Long term Loans and Advances (32.83) {96.66)
Other Current Assets 126.79) {19.57)
Adjustment for Increase/ (Decrease} in Operating Liabilitles
Trade Payables {56.25) 219.36
Long term Provisions
Other Current Liabilitles 59.57 21.91
Cash How from operations after changes in working capltat 247 15 198.21
Net Direct Taxes [Paid)/ Refunded [17.94) 1.72
Net Cash Flow from/{used in) Operating Activities 229.22 199.93
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Eguipment Including CWIP [525.78) {557.58]
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipmants 1144 31.88
Interest Income 38.82 2877
Increase in Bank deposits ather than Cash and Cash Equivalents (33.93) (476.54)
Net Cash Flow from/ {used in} Investing Activities [509.46) (1,013.47)
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lssue of Shares/ Share Application Money d 3569
[Including Share Premium)/ {Buyback of Shares)
Proceeds / {Repayment} af Long term Borrowirigs {5:14) 7.1
Proceeds [ (Repayment]) of Short term Borrowings 275.97 11036
Interest Expenses (32.69) (5.08)
Other Long term Liabilities 85.58 5.92
Net Cash Flow from/{used in} Financing Activitles 323.71 158.30
NetIncrease/ [Decrease] |n Cash and Cash Equivalents 43.48 (655,24
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 2597 G681.41
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of period £9.44 25.97
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
Notes to the cash flow statement
1 Allfigures in brackets are outflow.
2 Theabove cash flow statement has been prepared as per the "Indirect method” set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 Cash Flows Statements.
3 Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.
4 Cashand cash equivalents at the end (beginning) of the year include Rs, 3.35 Lakhs (Rs 3.02 Lakhs) not gvallable for immediate use.
5 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
As at March 31
2024 2023 2022
a  CashonHand 1874 8.92 4.53
i Balances with Banks 50.6% 1705 676.88
H244 25,97 681.41
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